
11/12/24 City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 1 of 3 

City of Guyton, Georgia 
City Council  

Public Hearing and Regular Meeting 
November 12, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. 

Guyton City Hall 
310 Central Boulevard 

Guyton, GA 31312 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Hearing

Annexation and Rezoning of Parcel ID 02940042 
(0.9 Acres / AR-1 → C-1) 

3. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

4. Consideration to Approve the Agenda

5. Consideration to Approve the Minutes

10/08/24 Regular Meeting 
10/21/24 Special Called Meeting 
10/25/24 Special Called Meeting 

6. Reports from Staff and Committees

Police Department  Kelphie Lundy 
Fire Department  Clint Hodges 
Public Works/Water/Sewer EOM 
Planning and Zoning  Lon Harden 
Industrial Development  Lon Harden 
Historical Commission   Lucy Powell 
Leisure Services  Lula Seabrooks 
Library Board Jim Odum 
Downtown Development  Miller Bargeron, Jr. 

7. New Business

A. First reading of Ordinance 2024-09, amending the City of Guyton Zoning Ordinance

B. First reading of Ordinance 2024-10, regarding annexation and rezoning of Parcel ID
02940042



11/12/24 City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 2 of 3 

C. Consideration to approve Resolution 2024-19, amending the City of Guyton
Employee Appeal Procedure

D. Consideration to approve and adopt the City of Guyton Language Access Plan

8. General Government

Municipal Court Location Discussion 
Gymnasium Parking Lot Paving Discussion 
AlcineXtreme Fitness, LLC Proposal Discussion 

9. Public Participation

Jan Mackinnon, Georgia Department of Natural Resources 
Coastal Incentive Grant 

10. Dates to Remember

Tuesday, November 19, 2024, Special Called Planning and Zoning Public Hearing 
and Meeting at 7:00 P.M. — Guyton City Hall, 310 Central Boulevard,  
Guyton, GA 31312 

Wednesday, November 20, 2024, Downtown Development Authority Meeting at 
10:00 A.M. — Guyton City Hall, 310 Central Boulevard, Guyton, GA 31312 

Thursday and Friday, November 28-29, 2024, Guyton City Hall closed in 
observance of Thanksgiving 

Sunday, December 1, 2024, Christmas Tree Lighting at 6:00 P.M. — 
Guyton Walking Trail, 310 Central Boulevard, Guyton, GA 31312 

Saturday, December 7, 2024, Winter Sale Along the Trail from 8:00 A.M. until  
2:00 P.M. — Guyton Walking Trail, 310 Central Boulevard, Guyton, GA 31312 

Tuesday, December 10, 2024, Luminary Service at 5:30 P.M. — Guyton Cemeteries, 
Cemetery Road, Guyton, GA 31312 

Tuesday, December 10, 2024, Guyton City Council Meeting at 7:00 P.M. — 
Guyton City Hall, 310 Central Boulevard, Guyton, GA 31312 

11. Consideration to Adjourn



11/12/24 City Council Meeting Agenda - Page 3 of 3 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rules of Decorum for All Meetings 

The purpose of the Rules of Decorum is to foster an atmosphere of civil and courteous discourse, 
even and especially when discussing contentious topics, at all meetings held by the City of 
Guyton. 

(A) General rules applicable to all (Mayor and City Council, Staff, Members of the Public)
1) Each speaker should refrain from personal attacks, foul or abusive language, and will

maintain a civil and courteous manner and tone.
2) During designated times for members of the public to speak, members of the public will

be permitted 10 minutes to discuss topics.  After 10 minutes of discussion on a topic,
members of the public will be limited to 3:00 minutes speaking time. The Mayor or
presiding officer shall have the authority to grant additional speaking time.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, during public hearings involving zoning decisions,
members of the public will have no less than 10 minutes to speak in favor, and no less
than 10 minutes to speak in opposition.

3) Members of the audience will respect the rights of others and will not create noise or
other disturbances that will disrupt or disturb persons who are addressing the Mayor and
Council or Committee or Board or Commission, or members of those bodies who are
speaking, or otherwise impede the orderly conduct of the meeting.

(B) Additional Rules for Mayor and City Council, Committees, Boards or Commissions
1. The Mayor and City Council, Committees, Boards, Authorities, or Commissions will

conduct themselves in a professional and respectful manner at all meetings.
2. Questions for staff or individuals or other Council, Committee, Board or Commission

members will be directed to the appropriate person to answer.  Members of the Mayor
and City Council, Committees, Boards, Authorities, or Commissions will attempt to
answer or address questions presented one at a time without attempting to talk over
another member.

3. Members of the Mayor and City Council, Committees, Boards, Authorities, or
Commissions are always free to criticize or question policies, positions, data, or
information presented. However, members of the Mayor and City Council, Committees,
Boards, Authorities, or Commissions will not attack or impugn the person presenting.

(C) Enforcement
The Mayor or presiding officer has the authority to enforce each of the Rules of Decorum
regarding members of the public. If any Rule is violated, the Mayor or presiding officer will give
the speaker a warning, citing the Rule being violated, and telling the speaker that a second
violation will result in a forfeiture of the right to speak further. The Mayor or presiding officer
also may have the offending speaker removed from the meeting if the misconduct persists. The
Mayor or presiding officer shall not have any power under this provision regarding a Council,
Committee, Board or Commission member.





























1 
 

CITY OF GUYTON 
STATE OF GEORGIA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-09 
 
AN ORDINANCE BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF GUYTON TO 
AMEND THE CITY OF GUYTON, GEORGIA ZONING ORDINANCE; TO PROVIDE 
FOR NOTICE; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; TO REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN 
CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Guyton, Georgia is authorized by 
O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 to adopt ordinances relating to its property, affairs and local government; 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council are authorized to amend the City of Guyton, Georgia Zoning 
Ordinance from time to time and where necessary to maintain adequate regulations; 
 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Guyton, Georgia hereby resolve 
to amend the City of Guyton, Georgia Zoning Ordinance; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF GUYTON, in a regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful authority 
thereof, as follows: 
 
Section 1. The City of Guyton, Georgia Zoning Ordinance Article 6 – Intent of Land Use Districts 
and Specific Land Use District Regulation, Section 609 – C-1, Central Business District shall be 
amended and restated to read as follows:  
 
 Sec. 609. C-1, Central Business District. 

 
District Intent. The C-1 Central Business District is intended to protect and promote 
suitable areas for business and commercial uses which benefit from proximity to 
each other; to encourage the eventual elimination of uses inappropriate to a central 
business area; and to encourage the intensive development of centralized business 
center for the City of Guyton. 
 
[A.--C. Reserved.] 
 
D. Uses Permitted. The following uses shall be permitted in the C-1, Central 
Business District: 
 

(1) Generally recognized retail business which supply commodities on the 
premises and without outdoor display of goods, including, but not limited to, 
groceries, drugs, clothing, or hardware; 
(2) Personal service establishments which perform services on the premises, 
including, but not limited to, repair shops (radio, television, shoes, upholstery, 
etc.) and beauty parlors or barber shops; 



2 
 

(3) Offices available for the transaction of general business but excluding retail 
and manufacturing uses, including, but not limited to, banks, loan companies, 
insurance offices and real estate offices; 
(4) Professional services, including the following: medical, offices dentists, 
legal and similar allied professions; 
(5) Public offices, such as Post Offices, city administration, museums and 
similar governmental offices; 
(6) Private clubs, fraternal organizations and lodge halls; 
(7) Restaurants, grills, delicatessens, and similar eating establishments for full 
service and takeout, but not including drive-in types; 
(8) Hotels and boardinghouses; 
(9) Accessory uses and structures; 
(10) Liquor Stores.  

 
E. Special Permit Uses. The following uses may be permitted in accordance with 
the provisions contained in Article Ten and if additional conditions which may be 
required are met: 
 

(1) Automobile repair shop; 
(2) Convenience Stores; 
(3) Gas station; 
(4) Entertainment Facilities, such as movie theaters, game halls, and civic 
centers; 
(5) Feed and Grain Sale and Storage; 
(6) Hotels; 
(7) Laundromats and dry cleaners; 
(7.1) Liquor Stores; 
(8) Motels; 
(9) Parking lots (private and public), not including those areas required by 
Article Eight, Off-Street [Automobile and Vehicle] Parking and Loading; 
(10) Public and private schools and religious institutions; 
(11) Restaurants with drive through facility; 
(12) Shopping Centers; 
(13) Small engine repair shop; 
(14) Truck Terminals; 
(15) Vending Machine Structures; 
(16) Waterfront facilities pertaining to traditional fishing, shrimping, and 
boating activities; 
(17) Wholesale Business, such as a warehouse and bulk sales facilities; 
(18) Public utility installations and buildings, including water towers, electric 
transformer stations, and water and sewage pumping stations, provided that no 
open storage is permitted at the site; the area is fenced in by a wall or fence at 
least six feet in height; and landscaped strip not less than five (5) feet in width 
is planted and maintained. 

 



3 
 

F. Area Regulations. Unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, uses permitted 
in the C-1, Central Business District shall conform to the following requirements: 
 

(1) Minimum lot area: 4,000 square feet; 
(2) Minimum lot width: 50 feet; 
(3) Minimum front yard setback: 50 feet; 
(4) Minimum side yard: none, unless the parcel is adjacent to a residential 
district, in which case the minimum side yard shall be fifteen (15) feet; 
(5) Minimum rear yard: none, unless the parcel is adjacent to a residential 
district, in which case the minimum rear yard shall be fifteen (15) feet; 
(6) Maximum percentage of lot coverage: 100%; 
(7) Maximum building height: 45 feet; 
(8) Off-street parking and loading requirements as provided in Article Eight. 

 
 

Section 2. If any section, clause, sentence, or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 
way effect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 
 
Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its adoption by the City 
Council. 
 
Section 4. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 
 
Approved this the _____ day of ____________, 2024. 
 
 
CITY OF GUYTON 
 
 
__________________________ 
ANDY HARVILLE, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
FABIAN MANN, City Clerk 



1 
 

CITY OF GUYTON 
 
STATE OF GEORGIA   
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO ANNEX CERTAIN PROPERTY INTO THE CITY OF GUYTON, 
GEORGIA PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 36 OF TITLE 36 OF THE OFFICIAL CODE OF 
GEORGIA ANNOTATED, AND TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE AND 
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF GUYTON, GEORGIA, AS AMENDED, TO 
REZONE CERTAIN PROPERTY CURRENTLY KNOWN AS EFFINGHAM COUNTY 
PARCEL NO. 02940042 FROM EFFINGHAM COUNTY ZONING CLASSIFICATION 
AR-1 TO CITY OF GUYTON ZONING CLASSIFICATION C-1; TO REPEAL ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
GUYTON, GEORGIA in a regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful authority thereof, 
as follows: 
 
SECTION 1. That area contiguous to the City of Guyton, currently known as Effingham 

County Parcel No. 02940042 is hereby annexed into the City of Guyton and is 
made a part of said city. 

 
SECTION 2. That the zoning ordinance and Official Zoning Map of the City of Guyton, Georgia, 

as amended, be amended so that Parcel No. 02940042 (currently zoned Effingham 
County zoning classification AR-1), shall be rezoned to City of Guyton zoning 
classification C-1. 

 
SECTION 3. That the City Zoning Official and/or the City Clerk of Guyton is instructed to send 

within 30 days of the effective date of this ordinance an annexation report required 
under O.C.G.A. § 36-36-3 to: (1) the governing authority of Effingham County; (2) 
the Georgia Department of Community Affairs; and (3) the United States Census 
Bureau. The annexation report shall contain all information required under 
O.C.G.A. § 36-36-3. 

 
SECTION 4. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
SECTION 5. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 

repealed. 
 
 
 
 

 
SO ORDAINED, this _____ day of _______________, 2024. 
 
 
 



2 
 

         CITY OF GUYTON 
 
         __________________ 
         Andy Harville, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
______________________ 
Fabian Mann, City Clerk 



CITY OF GUYTON 
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-19 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GUYTON TO AMEND THE DISCIPLINARY 
APPEAL PROCEDURE IN THE CITY OF GUYTON EMPLOYMENT HANDBOOK; 

TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO 
REPEAL ALL ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS AND PARTS THEREOF IN 

CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of Guyton, Georgia is authorized by 
O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 to adopt ordinances and resolutions relating to its property, affairs, and local 
government;  
 
WHEREAS, Section 3.15 of the Charter of the City of Guyton provides that the City Council shall 
adopt rules and regulations concerning personnel policies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted a personnel policy in September 2021 titled “City of 
Guyton Employment Handbook”; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it necessary to amend the City of Guyton Employment 
Handbook;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF GUYTON, GEORGIA IN A REGULAR MEETING ASSEMBLED AND 
PURSUANT TO LAWFUL AUTHORITY THEREOF, AS FOLLOWS:  
 
Section 1. Amendment to the City of Guyton Employment Handbook. The section titled “Appeal 
Procedure” on Page 37 of the City of Guyton Employment Handbook shall be amended and 
restated to now read as follows:  
 

To ensure consistent treatment, all progressive counseling actions may be subject to 
appeal should an employee feel that he/she has been disciplined unjustly or too harshly.  

 
1. An employee may appeal a disciplinary action in writing to their Department Head 

stating the specific basis for the employee’s complaint and the specific relief 
desired.  

o The appeal must be submitted within five (5) business days after receiving 
the disciplinary action. 

o After considering all relevant information provided by the employee and 
conducting any additional investigation necessary, the Department Head 
shall communicate a written decision to the employee.  



2 
 

o A copy of the appeal and the Department Head’s decision, along with any 
supporting documentation, shall be sent to City Manager.  
 

2. The decision of the Department Head may be further appealed to the City 
Manager. 
o The appeal must be submitted in writing to the City Manager by the 

employee within five (5) business days from receipt of the Department 
Head’s decision. 

o After considering all relevant information provided by the employee and 
conducting any additional investigation necessary, the City Manager shall 
communicate a written decision to the employee.  

 
3. The decision of the City Manager may be further appealed to the City Council.  

o The appeal must be submitted in writing to the City Council by the 
employee within five (5) business days from receipt of the City Manager’s 
decision.  

o The City Council shall review the appeal and the City Manager’s decision 
along with any supporting documentation and shall render a decision after 
holding a public hearing. The employee may submit an additional written 
statement or further documentation for consideration by the City Council. 

o The employee may be placed on unpaid leave from the date of the 
Department Head’s decision through the date of the City Council’s 
decision. 
 

Employees may not appeal layoffs, reorganizations, restructuring, pay freezes, furloughs, 
or City Council actions. Failure by the employee to appeal the action/decision within the 
time periods prescribed above shall be grounds for automatic dismissal of the appeal.  

 
Section 2. Severability. If any section, clause, sentence or phrase of this resolution is held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no 
way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this resolution.   
 
 
Section 3. Repealer. All ordinances and resolutions and parts thereof in conflict with this resolution 
are hereby repealed. 
 
 
Section 4. Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption 
by the City Council. 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

SO RESOLVED, this __ day of November, 2024. 
 
 

CITY OF GUYTON 

 

              
      Andy Harville, Mayor 
       
Attest:       

       
Fabian Mann, City Clerk   

 



1 
 

 
 

Language Access Plan 
City of Guyton, Georgia 

Community Improvement Department 
November 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

P.O. Box 99 
Guyton, GA 31312 

(912) 772-3353 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Table of Contents 

 
I. General Information………………………………………………………………...Page 3  
 
II. Meaningful Access: Four Factor Analysis ………………………………...Page 5  
 
III. Language Assistance…………………………………………………………….…Page 7  
 
IV. Staff Training……………………………………..…………………………………..Page 8  
 
V. Translation of Documents…………………………………………………….….Page 9  
 
VI. Monitoring and Updating the LAP Plan…………………………………...Page 9 
 
VII. Dissemination of the City of Guyton’s LAP Plan………………..….…Page 9 
 
VIII. Records………………………………………………………………………..…..…..Page 9 
 
IX. Complaints/Findings…………………………………………………….…….....Page 10 
 
X. Available Federal LEP Resources……………………………………………..Page 10 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



3 
 

 
LANGUAGE ACCESS PLAN  

 
 
I. GENERAL INFORMATION  
 
Prepared By: Phillip L. Davis  

Associates In Local Government Assistance, Inc.  
P.O. Box 2025  
1007 West 12th Street  
Alma, GA 31510  
(912) 632-7839  
algainc@accessatc.net 
 

List of Current Applicable Funded Grants/Programs (to be automatically amended as projects are 
funded): 
 

1. Grantee: City of Guyton, GA 
CDBG Grant Number: 24p-x-051-2-6403 
Target Area: 7th Ave, Central Ave, Maple Circle, Anderson Street, Dilmus Jackson 
Street, Hines Ave., Samuel Smalls Sr. Ave. in Guyton, Georgia (Census Tract for the 
City of Guyton: 0.10% LEP; 3.60% are Spanish, 0% are Other Indo-European, and 
0% are Other) 

 
 

This Language Access Plan has been prepared to address the City of Guyton’s responsibilities as 
a recipient of federal financial assistance from Georgia Department of Community Affairs 
programs & grants funded by HUD as they relate to the needs of individuals with limited English 
language skills.  
 
The plan has been prepared to ensure compliance with HUD’s guidance and Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, and its implementing regulations. Under HUD’s guidance, the City of Guyton 
must take reasonable steps to ensure meaningful access to their programs and activities by persons 
with Limited English Proficiency (LEP).  
 
Executive Order 13166, titled Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, indicates that differing treatment based upon a person’s inability to speak, read, write 
or understands English is a type of national origin discrimination. It directs each agency to publish 
guidance for its respective recipients clarifying their obligation to ensure that such discrimination 
does not take place. This order applies to all state and local agencies which receive federal funds, 
including the City of Guyton. 
 
The City of Guyton has developed this Language Access Plan to help identify reasonable steps for 
providing language assistance to persons with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) who wish to 



4 
 

access services provided through programs funded by the Georgia Department of Community 
Affairs/HUD. As defined by Executive Order 13166, LEP persons are those who do not speak 
English as their primary language and have limited ability to read, speak, write or understand 
English. This plan outlines how to identify a person who may need language assistance, the ways 
in which assistance may be provided, staff training that may be required, and how to notify LEP 
persons that assistance is available.  
 
In order to prepare this plan, the City of Guyton used HUD’s four-factor LEP analysis which 
considers the following factors:  
1. The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by 
the Community Improvement programs;  
2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Community Improvement 
programs;  
3. The nature and importance of the Community Improvement programs and services provided by 
City of Guyton to the LEP population;  
4. The resources available to the City of Guyton and overall cost to provide LEP assistance. 
 
SAFE HARBORS  
In accordance with HUD Safe Harbors for LEP, the City of Guyton will translate written 
Community Improvement documents for groups that are at least 5% of the population eligible (and 
more than 50 persons) or 1,000 persons, whichever is less. If there are fewer than 50 persons in a 
language group that reaches the 5% trigger above, the City of Guyton will not translate the vital 
Community Improvement written materials but provides written notice in the primary language of 
the LEP group of the right to receive competent oral interpretation of those written materials, free 
of cost. 
 
The size of the language group determines the recommended provision for written language 
assistance. 
 
Size of Language Group 
 

Recommended Provision of Written 
Language Assistance 

1,000 or more in the eligible population  Translated vital documents 
More than 5% of the eligible population or 
beneficiaries and more than 50 in number  

Translated vital documents 
 

More than 5% of the eligible population or 
beneficiaries and 50 or less in number 

Translated written notice of right to receive 
free oral interpretation of documents. 

5% or less of the eligible population or 
beneficiaries and less than 1,000 in number  

No written translation is required. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 
 

 
 
II. MEANINGFUL ACCESS: FOUR-FACTOR ANALYSIS 
 
1. The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to 
be encountered by the programs.  
The City of Guyton Community Improvement staff reviewed the Georgia Department of 
Community Affairs mapping tool and determined that of the population of 2,223 persons over 5 
years of age, 88 persons in Guyton (3.60% of the total population) speak a language other than 
English. Of those 88 persons, 2 (0.10% of the total population speaking a language other than 
English) have limited English proficiency; that is, they speak English less than “very well”.   In 
Guyton, of those persons with limited English proficiency, 2 speak Spanish, 0 speak Other Indo-
European, and 0 speak other languages.   
 
A review of the residents that were in our FY 2024 (24p-x-051-2-6403) CDBG Target Area 
revealed (other than White or African American) there are 3 Hispanic White individuals, and 3 
Native American White individuals. (92% of the area population, all able to understand English 
very well).  Housing applicants for our FY 2024 CDBG Neighborhood Revitalization Application 
(Proposed) showed (3) Native American White, (0) Hispanic-Black, (1) Hispanic-White, and (0) 
Asian households in the target area. 56% were African-American, 0% were Native American-
Black, 7% were Native American-White,  0% were Asian, 0% were Black White, 29% were White, 
0% were Hispanic Black, and 7% were Hispanic White.  This does not meet the threshold described 
above for translating vital documents or translated written notice of right to receive free oral 
interpretation of documents. Oral Interpretation Services are available for clients upon request.  
However, in the past, all of our clients have provided their own translator with whom they are 
comfortable sharing personal information. 
 
Language Spoken* # of Residents Over 

5 Years of Age* 
Speaks English Less 
Than “Very Well”* 

English 2,135        (96.40%) N/A 
Spanish    88           (3.60%) 2      (0.10%) 
Total 2,223      (100.0%) 2      (0.10%) 

 
Grantee: City of Guyton, GA 
CDBG Grant Number: 24p-x-051-2-6403 
Target Area: 7th Ave, Central Ave, Maple Circle, Anderson Street, Dilmus Jackson Street, Hines 
Ave., Samuel Smalls Sr. Ave. in Guyton, Georgia (Census Tract for the City of Guyton: 0.10% 
LEP; 3.60% are Spanish, 0% are Other Indo-European, and 0% are Other) 
 
At the present time, GA DCA has identified No Census Tract in the City of Guyton that meets 
LEP criteria: 
 
 



6 
 

2. The frequency with which LEP persons come in contact with Community 
Improvement Department services.  
The City of Guyton Community Improvement Department staff reviewed the frequency with 
which staff have, or could have, contact with LEP persons. This includes documenting phone 
inquiries or office visits, as well as public hearings and interactions during surveys. Over the past 
two years, Community Improvement has had no requests for interpreters and no requests for 
translated program documents.  The city regularly provides a Spanish Speaking interpreter for our 
municipal court which meets once per month.  Most months the services of the interpreter are used. 
 
A review of the residents that were in our FY 2024 (24p-x-051-2-6403) CDBG Target Area 
revealed (other than White or African American) there are 3 Hispanic White individuals, and 3 
Native American White individuals. (92% of the area population, all able to understand English 
very well).  Housing applicants for our FY 2024 CDBG Neighborhood Revitalization Application 
(Proposed) showed (3) Native American White, (0) Hispanic-Black, (1) Hispanic-White, and (0) 
Asian households in the target area. 56% were African-American, 0% were Native American-
Black, 7% were Native American-White,  0% were Asian, 0% were Black White, 29% were White, 
0% were Hispanic Black, and 7% were Hispanic White.  This does not meet the threshold described 
above for translating vital documents or translated written notice of right to receive free oral 
interpretation of documents. Oral Interpretation Services are available for clients upon request.  
However, in the past, all of our clients have provided their own translator with whom they are 
comfortable sharing personal information. 
 
Frequency of Interaction:  Annually  

 

For Project Applications:  

a. When notifying the public about grant award application and its proposed activities. 
b. When notifying the public about grant award and its funded activities. 
c. When seeking applicants to participate in the program (e.g., when seeking homeowners for 

rehabilitation assistance). 
d. When seeking qualified contractors. 
e. When working with homeowners selected for assistance. 
f. When seeking bids from builders to construct the homes. 
g. When notifying the public about the grant award closeout and its accomplishments. 

3. The nature and importance of programs, activities or services provided by 
Community Improvement to the LEP population.  
Housing plays a critical role in maintaining quality of life. Community Improvement is committed 
to ensure access to safe, sanitary and affordable housing for our eligible clients. Outreach 
throughout the community helps to ensure a Warmness of our programs. The majority of the City’s 
population- 96.40% speaks English.  Other than English speaking individuals, Community 
Improvement staff are most likely to encounter Spanish speaking LEP individuals through office 
visits, phone conversations and during surveys. Upon client request, the City of Guyton will 
provide oral interpreters using bilingual employees or qualified contract interpreters. To date, all 
LEP individuals have provided their own interpreter; a child or friend. 



7 
 

 
Nature of the Program(s):  CDBG Street and Drainage Improvements. 
 
Importance of the Program(s):  Denial or delay of access to services or information would not have 
serious or life-threatening implications for the LEP individual. 
 
4. The resources available to the City of Guyton, and overall cost to  
provide LEP assistance.  
The City of Guyton reviewed its available resources that could be used for providing LEP 
assistance, including which of its documents would be most valuable to be translated if the need 
should arise.  An “I Speak” card/poster will be made available to determine needed language 
translations.  A notice (see below) will be posted in all ads for GA DCA/HUD programs regarding 
who to contact should language assistance be needed.  Language translation, if needed, would be 
provided through the available bi-lingual staff and/or the Language Line (770-455-7141) for which 
the City of Guyton would pay a fee.   
 
 
 III. LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE  
A person who does not speak English as their primary language and who has a limited ability to 
read, write, speak or understand English may be a Limited English Proficient person and may be 
entitled to language assistance with respect to Community Improvement services. Language 
assistance can include interpretation, which means oral or spoken transfer of a message from one 
language into another language and/or translation, which means the written transfer of a message 
from one language into another language.  
 
The Name of the individual at the City of Guyton responsible for coordination of LEP Compliance 
is: 
 

Fabian M. Mann, Jr. 
Fabian.Mann@cityofguyton.com 
City Clerk 
City of Guyton 
Office Phone: (912) 772-3353 
Mobile Phone: (912) 856-0547 
 

How the Community Improvement staff may identify an LEP person who needs language 
assistance:  
 

● Post notice of LEP Plan and the availability of interpretation services free of charge 
in languages LEP persons would understand, 

● Add statement (see below) to public meeting and event notices concerning GA 
DCA/HUD programs, 

● All Community Improvement staff will be informally surveyed periodically on 
their experience concerning any contacts with LEP persons during the previous 
year; and 



8 
 

● When Community Improvement conducts a Public Hearing, an informational 
meeting or event, a staff person may greet participants as they arrive. By informally 
engaging participants in conversation, it is possible to gauge each attendee’s ability 
to speak and understand English. Although translation may not be able to be 
provided at the event (unless previously requested) it will help identify the need for 
future events; and 

● Language Identification Cards/Posters will be used as necessary to determine a 
client’s language needs. 

 

Language Assistance Measures - Although there is a small percentage in the City of Guyton of 
eligible LEP households, that is, persons who speak English “not well” or “not at all”, it will strive 
to offer the following measures:  

1. The Community Improvement staff will take reasonable steps to provide the opportunity for 
meaningful access to LEP clients who have difficulty communicating English.  

 
2. The following resources will be available to accommodate LEP persons:  
 
● Interpreters for the Spanish language if available will be provided within a reasonable time 

period; or 
● Language interpretation will be accessed through Language Line Solutions.  
 
3. Language Identification Cards/Posters will be used as necessary to determine a client’s language 

needs.  
 
4. The following statements will be added to public meeting and event notices concerning GA 

DCA/HUD programs:  
 
“Persons with special needs relating to handicapped accessibility or foreign language shall contact 
Fabian Mann, City Clerk, at (912) 772-3353 or via email Fabian.Mann@cityofguyton.com. This 
person can be located at the Guyton City Hall, 310 Central Blvd, Guyton, GA 31312 between the 
hours of 8:00 to 4:30 Monday through Friday, except holidays.   Individuals who are hearing 
impaired can contact the Georgia Relay Services, telephone number (TDD) 1-800-255-0056, 
(Voice) 1-800-255-0135.” 

 
IV. STAFF TRAINING  
The following training will be provided to all Community Improvement staff:  
● Information on the Title VI Policy and LEP responsibilities;  
● Description of language assistance services offered to the public; 
● Documentation of language assistance requests; and 
● How to handle a potential Title VI/LEP complaint.  
 



9 
 

All contractors, subcontractors and sub-recipients performing work for or receiving federal funds 
for Community Development projects will be required to follow the Title VI/LEP guidelines. 

V. TRANSLATION OF DOCUMENTS  
● The City of Guyton weighed the cost and benefits of translating documents for potential LEP 
groups. Considering the expense of translating the documents, the likelihood of frequent changes 
in documents and other relevant factors, at this time no documents require translation.   
 
● Due to the relatively small eligible local LEP population, the City of Guyton does not have a 
formal outreach procedure in place at this time. Translation resources have been identified. When 
and if the need arises for LEP outreach, the City of Guyton will consider the following option:  
 

-When staff prepares a document, or schedules a meeting, for which the target audience is 
expected to include LEP individuals, then relevant documents, meeting notices, flyers, and 
agendas will be printed in an alternative language based on the known LEP population, if 
requested. 

 VI. MONITORING AND UPDATING THE LAP PLAN  
The City of Guyton will update the LAP Plan as required. At a minimum, the plan will be reviewed 
and updated every five years using the United States Census Bureau for census information, or 
when it is clear that higher concentrations of LEP individuals are present in the City of Guyton. 
Updates will include the following:  
● The number of documented LEP person contacts encountered annually; 
●  How the needs of LEP persons have been addressed; 
●  Determination of the current LEP population in the service area; 
●  Determination as to whether the need for translation services has changed; 
●  Determine whether local language assistance programs have been effective and sufficient 

to meet the need; 
● Determine whether the City of Guyton’s financial resources are sufficient to fund language 

assistance resources needed; 
●  Determine whether the City of Guyton fully complies with the goals of this LAP Plan; and 
● Determine whether complaints have been received concerning the agency’s failure to meet 

the needs of LEP individuals.  
 
VII. DISSEMINATION OF THE CITY OF GUYTON’S LAP PLAN  
The LAP Plan will be on the City of Guyton’s website page if applicable and provided to anyone 
requesting the information. 
 
VIII. RECORDS 
The City of Guyton will maintain records in the City Clerk’s office regarding its efforts to comply 
with Title VI LEP obligations.  These records will be reviewed periodically and open to the public 
in an effort to improve service.   
 
 
 



10 
 

IX. COMPLAINTS/FINDINGS 
Any person who believes they have been denied the benefits of this LAP or that the City of Guyton 
has not complied with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C. 2000(d) and Executive 
Order 13166 regulations may file a complaint with the City LAP Coordinator. The City LAP 
Coordinator may be the first point of contact for any complaints or appeals, but the DCA LAP 
Coordinator must be informed of all complaints and appeals. The LAP Coordinator will provide 
oversight of the complaint/appeal resolution process. To file a complaint, submit the written 
complaint to: 
  

Fabian M. Mann, Jr. 
Fabian.Mann@cityofguyton.com 
City Clerk 
City of Guyton 
Office Phone: (912) 772-3353 
Mobile Phone: (912) 856-0547 
 
Or 
 
DCA 504 Coordinator 
60 Executive Park South, N.E.   
Atlanta, Georgia 30329-2231  
fairhousing@dca.ga.gov 

  
 
X. AVAILABLE FEDERAL LEP RESOURCES 
  
HUD’s LEP Website:  
http://www.hud.gov/offices/fheo/lep.xml  
Federal LEP Website:  
http://www.lep.gov/  
LEP and Title VI Videos:  
http://www.lep.gov/video/video.html  
“I Speak” Card:  
http://www.lep.gov/ISpeakCards2004.pdf  












